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—  OUR
VISION

Enabling people to
advance with
confidence and
success.

To make our
O U R e Investor (s) prosper,

our staff excel and

M I S S I O N to create value for
our stakeholders.



MERITOCRACY

We believe in giving

opportunities and advantages to

our employees on the basis of
their ability. We believe

In rewarding achievement
and in providing first class
career opportunities for all.

CUSTOMER
Focus

We need to understand fully the
need of our Investors and to adopt
our product and services to meet

these, We must strive always to
put the satisfaction of our
Investar first.

PROGRESSIVENESS

We believe in the advancement of society
through the adoption of enliﬁhtened working
practice; innovative new pro

and a spirit of enterprise.

—

OuR CORPORATE

VALUES

Our values are based upon the

fundamental principles that define our
clilture and are brought to Life in our
attitude and behavior. It is our values that
make us unique and stem from five basic

principles,

e’

ucts and processes

EXCELLENCE

The markets in which we
operate are becoming
increasingly competitive and
our investers now have an
abundance of choice. Only
through being the very best -
in terms of the service we
offer, our product and
premises - can we hope to be
successful and grow.

INTEGRITY

We are an Asset Management
Company In Pakistan and our
success depends upon the
performance of the Fund(s).
which are under management
and our Investors and soclety
in general expect us to
possess and steadfastly
adhere to high moral
principles and professional
standards.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS’

OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited, the Management Company of HBL Growth Fund (Formerly: PICIC
Growth Fund) is pleased to present the 38th Annual Report of the HBL Growth Fund.

Economic Review

Pakistan’s economy sustained its growth trajectory in FY18 with substantial increase in aggregate demand leading to higher
external account risks. The challenges faced by the economy largely remained un-mitigated in midst of higher international oil
prices which aggravated current account deficit recently (mainly in 4QFY18). More recent policy steps (PKR depreciation,
interest rate increase and imposition of duty on import products) would likely yield some results while we foresee
continuation of stringent policy measures in FY19 as well.

GDP growth remained impressive at 5.8% in FY18 compared to 5.4% in the year before and the growth rate was the highest
in the past 13 years. Key factors behind the higher GDP growth rate was a turnaround in the agricultural sector, which posted
3.8% growth vs. just 2.1% growth in the previous year; meanwhile, industrial growth came in at 5.8% and services sector
posted growth of 6.4%. Large-scale manufacturing (LSM) posted 6b.0% YoY growth during 11MFY18 mainly led by Electronics
(+36.0%), Iron & Steel Products (+22.0%), Automobiles (+18.0%) and Non-metallic Mineral Products (+11.9%). Average
Inflation during FY18 was muted at 3.92%. However, inflation picked up at the end of year as head line inflation and core
inflation was recorded at 5.2% and 7.1% respectively for the month of Jun-18. This uptick in inflation was due to higher
international oil prices and three rounds of rupee deprecation. PKR depreciated by 5.0% against US dollar during Jun-18,
taking cumulative FY18 PKR depreciation to 16.0%.

The fiscal deficit exhibited a deterioration in 9MFY18 where the fiscal deficit-to-GDP ratio rose to 4.3% from 3.9%. During the
year, faster economic growth caused imbalances on the external front with FY18 current account deficit soaring to USD 18.0bn
(5.7% of GDP) compared to USD 12.6bn (4.1% of GDP) in FY17. In FY18, import of goods and services surged by 14.7% YoY to
USD 66.2bn while exports grew by 12.6% to USD 30.0bn resulting in a trade deficit of USD 36.2bn vs USD 31bn during FY17.
Remittances showed a nominal increase of 1.4% to USD 19.6bn due to decline in remittances from the Middle East countries.
As a result, SBP forex reserves decreased by USD 6.4bn since Jun-17 to reach USD 9.8bn at the end of FY18.

Going forward, continuation of stringent policy measures is expected with focus towards monetary and fiscal tightening and
import curtailment as external account risks remain high.

Money Market Review

During the year the Interest rate cycle started its reversal as central bank focus diverted towards containing rising twin deficits
rising inflation due to lack of fiscal discipline in election times. During the year, secondary market yields of 3, 5 and 10-year
PIBs increased by 180, 171 and 86 bps respectively while yields of 3, 6 and 12 month T-Bills increased by 79, 90 and 116 bps
respectively. Government of Pakistan raised only PKR 96bn through the PIB auction against a target of PKR 900bn as eight PIB
auctions were scrapped in the year due to lack of interest. The last cut-off yields stood at 7.5000%, 8.4795% and 8.6999% p.a.
for 3, 5 and 10-year PIBs respectively. Overall trading in longer tenors remained lackluster due to market participants’
consensus of increase in interest rates.

During FY18, Government retired PKR 77bn from scheduled banks against borrowing of PKR 179bn during same period last
year due to multiple scrapped PIB Auctions. Meanwhile, Government borrowing from SBP increased by PKR 1,439bn during
the period against PKR 908bn during same period last year. Government largely managed its borrowing requirements through
domestic sources and raised PKR 16,894bn via T-bills (excluding NCB) compared to the cumulative target of PKR 16,925bn and
maturities of PKR 15,971bn.

SBP increased the policy rate by 25bps in January and a further 50bps in May to 6.50% to control aggregate demand and the
current account deficit. Since then the SBP has further increased policy rate by 100bps in Jul-18 MPS. Going forward, we
foresee another interest rate hike of 50bps in the calendar year on the back of increasing inflation expectation and
sustainability of current account risks.

Stock Market Review
Pakistan Equities witnessed a topsy-turvy ride during FY18 underlined by disappointing foreign flows (after MSCI upgrade),
political uncertainty following the ouster of ex-PM, macroeconomic challenges and speculations relating to recently

concluded general elections.

KSE100 Index shed 4,654 points during the fiscal year to close at 41,911 points, reflecting a decline of 10%. Despite market
expectation of strong foreign inflows following Pakistan’s inclusion in the MSCI Emerging Markets, foreign investors continued
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to remain net sellers and sold stocks worth USD289mn. Within local investors, insurance companies and corporates bought
equities of USD204mn and USD100mn respectively while Mutual funds divested equities of USD35mn during the year. On the
political front, Ex-Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif was disqualified by Supreme Court in Jul-17 which further marred investor
sentiment. Moreover, economic concerns increased due to rising twin deficits followed by stringent policy measures by the
government (16% PKR depreciation and 75bps increase in interest rates).

The Cement and Banking sector led the rout in the benchmark index, causing attrition of 2,288 points and 1,083 points
respectively. The decline in cements was caused by the fears of a price war in the sector as upcoming expansions could lead
to an oversupply situation particularly in the Southern region. Investor sentiment was reflected in poor price performance of
DGKC and LUCK which fell 44% and 37% YoY respectively. In the banking sector, large banks caused underperformance where
HBL, UBL and NBP fell 37%, 23% and 20% owing to regulatory concerns, pension provisions and other legal issues. Meanwhile
mid-tier banks outperformed the index buoyed by rising interest rate environment which is expected to lead to margin
expansion.

Oil & Gas Exploration and Production sector defied overall trend during FY18 and posted strong gains. The sector contributed
1,628 points to the market owing to 66% increase in International Oil Prices and 16% PKR depreciation. The outperformance
was led by POL and PPL posting returns of 58% and 53% against SPLY.

Going forward, Pakistan equities are expected to rebound with restoration of political stability (after General Elections),
gradual improvement in macroeconomic trends and potential revival of foreign investor interest after steep PKR depreciation.

Financial Results

The financial results of HBL Growth Fund for the year under review are summarized as under:

(Rupees in

‘000")

Un-appropriated Profit brought forward 2,565,464

Net Loss after taxation for the year (559,283)

Profit available for appropriation m

Appropriation:

Final Cash Dividend for the year ended June 30, 2017@ 27.50% (779,625)

Un-appropriated profit carried forward 1,226,556

Earnings / (loss) per certificate (Rupees) (1.97)

During the period under review fund incurred a total loss of Rs. 207 million including unrealized loss of Rs. 292 million (2017:
unrealized gain of Rs. 817 million) as compared to total income of Rs. 1.96 billion reported for the corresponding period.

Realized capital loss during the period stood at Rs. 722 million as compared to realized capital gain of Rs. 579 million in the
corresponding period. The dividend income during the period stood at Rs. 739 million as compared to Rs. 537 million in the
corresponding period.

Total expenditure during the period stood at Rs. 352 million as compared to Rs. 375 million during the corresponding period.

Tax provision for the current year amounted to nil due to tax exemption under Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and Regulation 63 of NBFC & NE Regulations, 2008.

The net loss for the period stood at Rs. 559 million as compared to a net profit of Rs 1.66 billion reported for the corresponding
period. This translates into loss per certificate of Rs. 1.97 for the period as compared to earnings of Rs5.86 per certificate in
the corresponding period.

The net assets decreased from Rs. 14.58 billion as on June 30, 2017 to Rs. 12.68 billion as on June 30, 2018 and accordingly

the net asset value per certificate decreased from Rs. 51.44 per certificate as on June 30, 2017 to Rs. 44.71 per certificate as
on June 30, 2018.
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INCOME DISTRIBUTION

The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management Company) has declared NIL dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2018.

Compliance with the Regulation 65 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

As per Regulation 65 of the NBFC Regulations, all closed end funds were required to be converted into open end schemes
upon expiry of five years from November 21, 2007 i.e. by November 21, 2012. However Closed end funds whose portfolios
were frozen as a result of Consent Agreements with Government of Pakistan were allowed to be converted into open end
schemes within three months from the date of the removal of the freezing of the portfolios. Since the Fund has Frozen
Portfolio comprising shares of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, its conversion into
an open end scheme was deferred.

During the year, the Board of the Management Company of the Fund approved the Conversion Plan (the Plan) of the fund for
the conversion of the Fund into an Open End Scheme. For this purpose, the Plan was presented to and approved by the
Certificate Holders of the Fund in its General Meeting dated January 10, 2018. The Plan was also approved by Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) on February 16, 2018.

Subsequently, the Replacement Trust Deed and Replacement Offering Document were approved by the Commission. The
Fund has been registered as open-ended Fund notified entity under Regulation 44 of NBFC Regulations, 2008 on June 7, 2018.
As per the approved Plan, the conversion took place on July 2, 2018 and every Certificate Holder of the closed end fund was
entitled to following for each certificate held;

i.  One Class-A Unit of the Fund was issued to every Certificate Holders of Fund for each certificate held representing Frozen
Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

ii. One Class-B Unit of the Fund was issued to the every Certificate Holder of Fund for each certificate held representing
Unfrozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

This matter is fully disclosed in note 1.5 of the financial statements of the Fund.
Management Company Quality Rating

The JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has maintained management quality rating of ‘AM2+ (stable outlook)’ to
the Management Company.

Disclosures in Compliance with Listed Companies Corporate Governance Regulations

This part of the Directors’ report to certificate-holders is given as required under Chapter Xlll and other provisions of the Listed
Companies Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017:

Composition of the Board:

Total No. of Directors:

a) Male: 6

b) Female: 1
Composition:

a) Independent Directors: 4

b) Other Nonexecutive Directors: 2

c) Executive Directors: 1
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Committees of the Board:
Board Audit Committee

The composition is as follows:

Mr. Shabbir Hussain Chairman. Appointed as member effective from Apr 11,
Hashmi 2018.

Mr. Rizwan Haider Member

Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee Member

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal Member. Appointed as member effective from Oct 9, 2017.
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar Member. Appointed as member effective from Aprll, 2018.
Mr. Nadeem Abdullah Resigned from Board effective from Feb 26, 2018.

Board Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR&R)

The composition is as follows:

Mr. Aga Sher shah Chairman. Appointed as member effective from Feb 20,
2018.

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal Member

Mr. Farid Ahmed Khand Member.

Mr. Towfig Habib Chinoy Resigned from Board effective from Nov 23, 2017.

Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi Member. Appointed as member effective from Aug 24,
2018.

Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC)

The composition is as follows:

Mr. Rizwan Haider Chairman

Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan Member

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar Member. Appointed as member effective from Feb 20,
2018.

Mr. Salah Uddin Resigned from Board effective from Nov 30, 2017.

Manzoor

Remuneration of the Non-Executive & Independent Directors of the Board of Management Company:

The Fund does not pay any remuneration to the Directors of the Management Company. The remuneration to the Directors is
paid by the Management Company.

Disclosure of company’s risk framework and internal control system:

The overall responsibility of overseeing risk management processes lies with the Board of Directors. This includes risk
management and internal control procedures. The Company’s risk management processes are designed to safeguard its
assets and address possible risks to its Business, including possible impacts on business continuity. The documented processes
are subject to regular review. Identified risks which could potentially affect the achievement of strategic, operational, financial
and/or compliance objectives are promptly reported to the Board and senior management, allowing them to take timely
action where required, to ensure the Company’s operations continue smoothly.
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The company has a clear organizational structure with a well-defined chain of authority. The Board has formed a Risk and
Investment Committee which is responsible for defining the policies for monitoring and review of all material controls,
including financial and operational compliance. The Board has also approved well defined Risk Policy which ensures that risk
mitigation measures are robust with well-defined roles and responsibilities. The senior management team is responsible for
implementing procedures, monitoring risk and assessing the effectiveness of various controls.

Auditors

M/s Deloitte Yousuf Adil, Chartered Accountants existing auditors of HBL Growth Fund have retired. The Board of Directors
would consider the matter of the appointment of auditors in due course of time.

Acknowledgement

Finally, we once again avail this opportunity to thank all our valued certificate holders and correspondents for their continuing
patronage and support. We would also like to thank the Ministry of Finance, Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan,
State Bank of Pakistan, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee), National Clearing Company of Pakistan
Limited and other regulatory authorities, financial institutions and the auditors for their continued guidance and assistance.
The Board also wishes to place on record its appreciation for the staff for their commitment and hard work and to the
certificate-holders for the trust and confidence reposed in us.

On behalf of the Board of
HBL Asset Management Limited

Chief Executive Officer
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FUND MANAGER'’S REPORT —

HBL GROWTH FUND (Formerly PICIC Growth Fund)
As at June 30, 2018

Type and Category of Fund

Equity / Closed-end

Investment Objective and Accomplishment of Objective

HBL Growth Fund - Formerly PICIC Growth Fund (HGF) is a closed-end equity fund. The objective of the Fund is capital growth
of the Certificate Holders for which investments would be made in the best available opportunities, while considering
acceptable risk parameters and applicable rules and regulations. The Collective Investment Scheme achieved its stated
objective.

Benchmark and Performance Comparison with Benchmark

The Fund’s benchmark is KSE=100 Index.

The Fund’s total NAV decreased by 8.23%, outperforming the benchmark KSE 100 Index by 1.77% during FY18. The Fund's ex.

Frozen NAV decreased by 7.40% during the stated period outperforming the benchmark KSE 100 Index by 2.60%. A
comparison of the fund return with the benchmark is given below:

Return of Fund

HGF Frozen HGF -EX Frozen Benchmark
June 2018 0.72% 0.09% 1.52% -2.18%
May 2018 -5.99% -7.13% -4.51% -5.81%
April 2018 2.19% 4.84% -1.07% -0.16%
March 2018 5.41% 6.28% 4.35% 5.37%
February 2018 -3.92% -5.26% -2.26% -1.84%
January 2018 8.98% 10.28% 7.40% 8.84%
December 2017 -3.17% -5.71% 0.11% 1.15%
November 2017 -4.42% -9.11% 2.38% 0.99%
October 2017 -5.83% -8.76% -1.23% -6.58%
September 2017 2.18% 2.74% 1.67% 2.92%
August 2017 -2.69% 4.21% -10.70% -10.44%
July 2017 -0.84% 2.14% -4.09% -1.19%
HGF vs Benchmark
10.00% e T gt B enchmark
5.00%
0.00%
-5.00%
-10.00%
-15.00%
- - - - - - [ae] ] [aa] [aa] w w
= 5 A = I o = i = T TL
3§ 8§ 8 2 &8 &8 8 E 3 5 3

Strategies and Policies employed during the Year

During the year under review, the Fund decreased its exposure in equities marginally from 94.46% on June 30, 2017 t0 92.79%
on June 30, 2018. Further, sectors wise allocation was continuously reviewed and revisited throughout the year to ensure
optimum return to the investors. Accordingly, exposures in Oil & Gas Marketing, Oil and Gas Exploration, Commercial Banks
and Fertilizers were increased while decreasing exposure to the Cements and Engineering sectors
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Asset Allocation June 2018 Asset Allocation June 2017
Cash / Oth
Others Sectors ES? 28 Ers CasI51 J;i);hers
9.12% ’ :
Power Generation
& Distribution Others
2.55% Sectors
24.17%
Fertilizer
4.93% k Oil & Gas 0il & Gas
Marketing Power Marketing
0il & Gas Companies Ceneration & Companies
Exploration 56.60% Distribution 51.40%
Companies 2. 66%
8.79%
Fertilizer
Commercial 3.04%
Bank: )
1;;,3:5 0il & Gas Commercial Banks
. Exploration 8.74%

Significant Changes in Asset Allocation during the Year

The following table shows a comparison of top sector wise allocation of equity investments in the Fund as on June 30, 2018
and June 30, 2017:

SECTOR ALLOCATION (% of Total Assets)

Jun -18 Jun -17
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies 56.60% 51.40%
Commercial Banks 10.80% 8.74%
Oil & Gas Exp loration Companies 8.79% 4.44%
Fertilizer 4.93% 3.04%
Power Generation & Distribution 2.55% 2.66%
Others Sectors 9.12% 24.17%

Fund Performance

During the period under review fund incurred a total loss of Rs. 207 million including unrealized loss of Rs. 292 million (2017:
unrealized gain of Rs. 817 million) as compared to total income of Rs. 1.96 billion reported for the corresponding period.

Realized capital loss during the period stood at Rs. 722 million as compared to realized capital gain of Rs. 579 million in the
corresponding period. The dividend income during the period stood at Rs. 739 million as compared to Rs. 537 million in the
corresponding period.

Total expenditure during the period stood at Rs. 352 million as compared to Rs. 375 million during the corresponding period.

The net loss for the period stood at Rs. 559 million as compared to a net profit of Rs 1.66 billion reported for the corresponding
period. This translates into loss per certificate of Rs. 1.97 for the period as compared to earnings of Rs5.86 per certificate in
the corresponding period.

The net assets decreased from Rs. 14.58 billion as on June 30, 2017 to Rs. 12.68 billion as on June 30, 2018 and accordingly
the net asset value per certificate decreased from Rs. 51.44 per certificate as on June 30, 2017 to Rs. 44.71 per certificate as
onJune 30, 2018.

Market Review

Pakistan Equities witnessed a topsy-turvy ride during outgoing year with disappointing foreign flows (after MSCI upgrade),
political uncertainty following the ouster of ex-PM, macroeconomic challenges and ongoing speculation about the upcoming
general elections.

KSE100 Index shed by 4,654 points to close at 41,911 points, reflecting a decline of 10%. Despite market expectation of strong

foreign inflows following Pakistan’s inclusion in the MSCI Emerging Markets, foreign investors continued to remain net sellers
and sold stocks of worth USD289mn. Within local investors, insurance companies and corporates bought equities of
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USD204mn and USD100mn respectively while Mutual funds divested equities of USD35mn during the year. On the political
front, Ex-Prime Minister Nawaz Sharif was disqualified by Supreme Court in Jul-17 which further marred investor sentiment.
Moreover, economic concerns increased due to rising twin deficits followed by stringent policy measures by policy makers
(16% PKR depreciation and 75bps increase in interest rates).

The Cement and Banking sector led the rout in the benchmark index, causing attrition of 2,288 points and 1,083 points
respectively. Decline in cements was caused owing to the fears of a price war in the segment as upcoming expansions could
lead to an oversupply situation particularly in the Southern region as can be grasped from price performance of DGKC and
LUCK which fell 44% and 37% YoY respectively. In the banking sector, large banks caused underperformance where HBL, UBL
and NBP fell 37%, 23% and 20% owing to regulatory concerns, pension and other legal issues. Meanwhile mid-tier banks
outperformed the index buoyed by rising interest rate environment which is expected to lead to margin expansion.

Oil & Gas Exploration and Production sector defied overall trend during FY18 and posted strong gains where the sector
contributed 1,628 points to the market owing to 66% increase in International Qil Prices and 16% PKR depreciation. The
outperformance was led by POL and PPL posting returns of 58% and 53% against SPLY.

Going forward, we expect Pakistan equities to rebound with restoration of political stability (after General Elections), gradual
improvement in macroeconomic trends and potential revival of foreign investor interest after steep PKR depreciation.
Moreover, we highlight that Pakistan market’s discount to emerging as well as frontier peers has increased to 30% and 28%
against 5-year averages of 25% and 19% respectively reflecting a good entry point.

Distribution

The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited (the Management Company) has declared NIL dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2018.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund.

Breakdown of Certificate Holding by Size

From — To No. of Certificate Total No. of Certificates Held

1-100 455 23,901

101 - 500 2,773 752,322

501 - 1,000 1,185 938,671

100,1 - 10,000 3,650 13,005,265
10,001 - 100,000 1,149 31,369,583
100,001 - 500,000 121 24,108,408
500,001 - 1,000,000 16 11,072,562
1,000,001 - 5,000,000 13 21,696,457
5,000, 001 and above 9 180,532,831
Total 9,371 283,500,000

Certificate Splits

There were no certificate splits during the year.

Circumstances materially affecting the Interest of Certificate Holders
Investments are subject to market risk.

Soft Commission

The Management Company from time to time receives research reports and presentations from brokerage houses.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE -

HBL GROWTH FUND (Formerly PICIC Growth Fund)
As at June 30, 2018

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Net assets at the period end (Rs'000) 12,675,960 14,582,713 11,830,393 11,442,602 12,866,130 10,749,427
Net Assets Value per certificate (Rupees) 44,71 51.44 41.73 40.36 45.38 37.92
RETURN (% )
Total return -8.23% 25.36% 3.39% -0.72% 35.41% 58.55%
Income distribution 0.00% 27.50% 7.50% - 45.00% 45.00%
Capital growth -8.23% -2.14% -4.11% -0.72% -9.59% 13.55%
DISTRIBUTION
First Interim dividend distribution - 2.75 0.75 - 4.50 4.5
Date of Income Distribution - 25-Aug-17 26-Aug-16 - 27-Aug-14 4-Sep-13
Total dividend distribution for the year/ period - 2.75 0.75 - 4.50 4.50
AVERAGE RETURNS ( % )
Average annual return 1 year -8.23% 25.36% 3.39% -0.71% 35.41% 58.55%
Average annual return 2 year 4.38% 13.85% 1.31% 15.95% 46.52% 27.91%
Average annual return 3 year 4.05% 8.77% 11.60% 28.68% 30.36% 24.08%
PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION - (%)
Percentage of Net Assets as at 30 June:
Bank Balances 5.59% 4% 3% 5% 1% 2%
GoP ljarah Sukuks - - - - - -
Placement with Banks and DFIs - - - - - -
Corporate Sukuks - - - - - -
Stock / Equities 92.79% 94% 78% 94% 95% 98%
Others 1.62% - 19% 1% 4% 0%

Note:
The Fund was reorganized in June 2004

Disclaimer:
Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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PROXY VOTING DISCLOURE

Summary of Actual Proxy voted by CIS

HBL Investment Fund Meetings Resolutions For Against
Number 7 15 15 -
(%ages) 100% 100% -
(h)  AMC did not participate in shareholders' meetings
Investee Company AGM Meeting Dt EOGM Meeting Dt
Abbott Laboratories (Pak) Ltd 23-4-2018 N-A
Amreli Steels Limited 25-10-2017 5-7-2018
Bank Al-Falah Ltd 28-3-2018 27-5-2018
Bank Al-Habib Limited 27-3-2018 N-A
Bank of Punjab Ltd N-A 30-5-2018
Cherat Cement Company Ltd. 16-10-2017 N-A
D G Khan Cement Co.Ltd. 28-10-2018 N-A
Engro Corporation Ltd 24-4-2018 N-A
Engro Fertilizers Limited 26-3-2018 N-A
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Ltd 29-3-2018 2-7-2018
Exide Pakistan Ltd 31-7-2017 28-7-2018
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Ltd 22-3-2018 |(28-08-2017)(23-5-2018)
Faysal Bank Limited 28-3-2018 (6-3-2018)(10-7-2018)
General Tyre & Rubber Co of Pakistan Ltd 31-10-2017 22-8-2017
Habib Bank Ltd 27-4-2018 N-A
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Ltd 28-6-2018 N-A
Hub Power Company Ltd 10-5-2017 22-6-2018
ICI Pakistan Ltd (26-09-2017)(16-2-2018) N-A
Indus Motor Company Limited 10-6-2017 N-A
International Industries Ltd 28-9-2017 21-5-2018
International Steels Limited 26-9-2017 N-A
Kot Addu Power Company Ltd 19-10-2017 N-A
Lucky Cement Ltd (25-09-2017)(28-11-2017) N-A
Mari Petroleum Company Ltd 26-9-2017 N-A
MCB Bank Ltd 27-3-2018 2-10-2018
Millat Tractors Ltd 27-10-2017 N-A
Nishat Mills Ltd 28-10-2017 28-3-2018
Oil & Gas Development Co Ltd 24-10-2017 N-A
Pak Elektron Ltd 25-4-2018 N-A
Pakistan Oilfields Ltd 19-10-2017 N-A
Pakistan Petroleum Ltd 27-10-2017 N-A
Pakistan State Oil Company Ltd 20-10-2017 N-A
Pioneer Cement Limited 26-10-2017 N-A
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Ltd 27-11-2017 N-A
Systems Limited 26-4-2018 N-A
Thal Limited 10-9-2017 N-A
The Searle Company Ltd 27-10-2017 31-7-2017
TPL Insurance Limited 19-4-2018 N-A
TPL Trakker Limited 10-10-2017 N-A
United Bank Limited 31-3-2018 N-A
Wyeth Pakistan Ltd 28-3-2018 8-4-2017

The proxy voting policy of the Fund is available on the website of the Management Company and detailed information
regarding actual proxies voted by Management Company in respect of the Fund is also available without charge, upon

request, to all unit holders.
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY
OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Head Office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B',
S.M.C.H.S. Main Shahra-e-Faisal,
Karachi - 74400, Pakistan.

Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500

Fax: (92-21) 34326020 - 23

URL: www.cdcpakistan.com
Email: info@cdcpak.com

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

HBL GROWTH FUND
(FORMERLY PICIC GROWTH FUND)

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of HBL Growth Fund
(formerly PICIC Growth Fund) (the Fund) are ofthe opinion that HBL Asset Management Limited
being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material respects managed the Fund during
the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(1) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the
constitutive documents of the Fund;

(ii) The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the
constitutive documents of the Fund.

Al

Aftab Ahmed Diwan

Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 18, 2018
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH

LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017
For the year ended June 30, 2018

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) through its letter # SCD/RS/MUFAP/346/2018 dated April 18,
2018 has exempted the open-ended Mutual Funds and unlisted Asset Management Companies from the applicability of the
Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. HBL Growth Fund (Formerly PICIC Growth Fund) has
converted into an open-ended mutual fund on July 2, 2018, however at the end of the financial year as on June 30, 2018 the
Fund is considered to have existed as closed-ended mutual fund, therefore the Management Company has complied with the
requirements of the Regulations in the following manner.

1. The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a) Male : 6
b) Female : 1
2. The Management Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors on its Board of

Directors. The Management Company, being an un-listed company, does not have any minority interest. At present
the Board includes:

Category Names

Mr. Agha Sher Shah (Chairman)
Ms. Ava Ardeshir Cowasjee
Independent Directors Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan (Chief Executive
Officer)

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal

Non- Executive Directors Mr. Rizwan Haider

Executive Directors

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause 6.2 of the Regulations.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including
the Management Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4. The Management Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Management Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Fund.
A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the
Board as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the
Board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect
to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of the meeting of board.

8. The Board is in process of developing a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of independent
and non-executives directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board has arranged Directors’ Training program for the following:
Name of Director Designation
Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan Chief Executive Officer
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10. The board has approved appointment of existing Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the Regulations

11. CFO & CEO duly endorse the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12. The board has formed committees comprises of members give below:

Audit Committee:

Chairman Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi

Members

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal

Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
Mr. Rizwan Haider

HR & Remuneration Committee:

Chairman Mr. Agha Sher Shah

Members

Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal
Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan
Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi

Risk Management Committee:

Chairman Mr. Rizwan Haider

Members

Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan

13. The term of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee
for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly, half yearly, yearly) of the committees were as per following:
a) Audit Committee - Quarterly
b) HR Remuneration Committee - Quarterly
c) Risk Management Committee - Quarterly
15. The Board has set-up an effective internal audit function for the year ended June 30, 2018, who are considered

suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
Management Company with regards to the Fund.

16. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality
Control Review Program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold
certificates of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.
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17.

18.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other material principles contained in the CCG have been complied with.

For and behalf of the board

AGHA SHER SHAH FARID AHMED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Officer
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Carporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of HBL
Asset Management Limited, the Management Company of HBL Growth Fund (formerly PICIC Growth
Fund (the Fund) for the year ended June 30, 2018 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 40
of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Management Company of the Fund. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance
reflects the status of the Fund’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not
and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Management Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Management Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Management
Company'’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval,
the Fund’s related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of
the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the
extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine the Management
Company's process for identification of related partles and that whether the related party transactions were
undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nathing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of

Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Fund's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018.

@odle.

Chartered Accaantants

Place: Karachi
Date: September 25, 2018

Member af
Deloitte Toucha Tohmatsu Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDERS

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion”

We have audited the financial statements of HBL Growth Fund (Formerly PICIC Growth Fund) (the
Fund), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018, and the related income
statement, statement of comprehensive income, distribution statement, statement of movement in
certificate holders’ fund - per certificate, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for

the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accaunting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position
of the Fund as at June 30, 2018, and of its financial performance, cash flows and transactions for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are Iindependent of the Fund and
Management Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of Pakistan together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. The following matter was addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on this matter.

S, No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our
audit

1 Valuation and existence of We performed the following steps during our
investments audit of investments:
As disclosed in note 6 to the financial « Independent testing of valuations by using
statements, investments amounted to Rs. the quoted market prices from the Pakistan
12.112 billion as at June 30, 2018. .Stock Exchange Limited and ensuring the

existence of number of securities by
These investments represent a significant comparing the internal records with Central
item on the statemen? of assets i?nd Depository Company (CDC) account records;
liabilities. The Fund invests principally in
Toa .
Page 1 of 3 Member of

Daloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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S. No. | Key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our ]
audit
listed equity securities and their valuation |« performing purchases and sales testing on a
and existence is a significant area during sample of trades made during the year to
our audit. There is a risk that appropriate obtain evidence regarding movement of
quoted prices may not be used to securities during the year; and

determine fair value.

Further, the Fund may have included
investments in its financial statements
which were not owned by Fund.

« any differences identified during our testing
that were over our acceptable threshold
were investigated further.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management Company Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management Company and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management Company is respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal
control as the Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Management Company is responsible for assessing the Fund's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Management Company either intends to liquidate the
Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company are responsible for overseeing the Fund’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable In Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Ra

Page 2 of 3 Member of
Deloitts Touche Tohmatsu Limied
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+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficlent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may

invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal cantral relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Management Company's internal contral.

e« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Management Company.

s« Conclude on the appropriateness of Management Company’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Fund’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease
to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencles in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance of the Management Company, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in cur report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s repart is Hena Sadiq.
ot Nous AL

Chartered Accquntants

Place: Karachi
Date: September 19, 2018

Page 3 of 3 Member of )
) Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
As at June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------

Assets
Bank balances 5 729,178 649,726
Investments 6 12,112,200 14,097,911
Dividend and profit receivable 7 205,437 171,792
Security deposits and other receivables 8 3,176 2,682
Total assets 13,049,991 14,922,111
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 9 24,928 28,671
Payable to the Trustee 10 786 1,847
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 12,397 13,508
Payable against purchase of investments 28,631 8,219
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12 170,516 167,734
Unclaimed dividend 136,773 119,419
Total liabilities 374,031 339,398
Net assets 12,675,960 14,582,713
Capital and reserves
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 13 2,835,000 2,835,000
Premium on issue of certificates 2,992,500 2,992,500
Unappropriated profit 1,226,556 2,565,464
Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments

classified as 'available-for-sale' 6.4 5,621,904 6,189,749
Total certificate holders' funds 12,675,960 14,582,713
Contingencies and commitments 14

------------ Rupees ------------
Net assets value per certificate 15 44.71 51.44
The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note =~ - (Rupees in '000)----------
Income
Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (721,880) 578,978
Dividend income 738,620 537,219
Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement of investment
at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' - net (292,200) 816,767
Markup income on treasury bills 760 -
Profit on bank deposits 67,578 25,087
(207,122) 1,958,051
Operating expenses
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1 260,360 284,368
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 9.2 33,847 36,968
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services 9.3 13,018 14,218
Remuneration of the Trustee 10.1 8,909 9,587
Annual fee to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11.1 12,397 13,508
Security transaction charges 9,984 11,362
Auditors' remuneration 16 1,001 903
Fee and subscription charges 1,367 2,555
Conversion expense from close end to open end fund 15 9,726 -
Settlement and bank charges 1,552 1,565
352,161 375,034
Net (loss) / income from operating activities (559,283) 1,583,017
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 - 118,107
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 - (40,775)
- 77,332
Net (loss) / income for the year before taxation (559,283) 1,660,349
Taxation 17 - -
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (559,283) 1,660,349
------------ Rupees ------------
(Loss) / Earnings per certificate 18 (1.97) 5.86
The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (559,283) 1,660,349
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will be reclassified to income statement
Unrealized (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement of

investments classified as available-for-sale (567,845) 1,304,596
Total comprehensive income for the year (1,127,128) 2,964,945

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Distribution Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Unappropriated profit brought forward:

- Realised gain 1,748,697 896,722
- Unrealised gain 816,767 221,018

2,565,464 1,117,740
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (559,283) 1,660,349

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2017 at 27.5%
declared on August 25, 2017 (June 30, 2016 at 7.5%
declared on August 26, 2016) (779,625) (212,625)

Unappropriated profit carried forward 1,226,556 2,565,464

Unappropriated profit comprising of:

- Realised gain 1,518,756 1,748,697
- Unrealised (loss) / gain (292,200) 816,767
1,226,556 2,565,464

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)
Statement of Movement in Certificate Holders' Fund - per certificate

For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = —--meeee (Rupees in '000)----------

Net assets value at the beginning of the year 51.44 41.73
Movement in net assets value from operating activities
Capital (loss) / gain on sale of investments - net (2.55) 2.04
Dividend income 2.61 1.89
Net unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement

of investment at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' (1.03) 2.88
Profit on bank deposits 0.23 0.09

(0.74) 6.90

Operating expenses (1.24) (1.32)
Net (decrease) / increase in net assets value from operating activities (1.98) 5.58
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund - 0.42
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund - (0.14)
Movement in net assets value from financing and investing activities
Final dividend (2.75) (0.75)
Net unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on

re-measurement of investments classified as 'available-for-sale' (2.00) 4.60
Net (decrease) / increase in net assets value from financing and

investing activities (4.75) 3.85
Net assets value at the end of the year 15 44.71 51.44
The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = - (Rupees in '000)----------
Cash flows from operating activities
Net (loss) / income for the year before taxation (559,283) 1,660,349
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Capital loss / (gain) on sale of investments - net 721,880 (578,978)
Dividend income (738,620) (537,219)
Profit on bank deposit (67,578) (25,087)
Unrealised diminution / (appreciation) on re-measurement of investments
at 'fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' - net 292,200 (816,767)
(351,401) (297,702)
(Increase) / decrease in assets
Investments - net 424,199 298,963
Security deposits and other receivables (494) (7)
423,705 298,956
Increase / (decrease) in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company (3,743) 5,207
Payable to the Trustee (1,061) 1,094
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (1,111) 3,172
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,782 (77,489)
(3,133) (68,016)
Bank profits received 65,868 24,087
Dividend received 706,684 454,923
772,552 479,010
Net cash generated from operating activities 841,723 412,249
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (762,271) (204,913)
Net cash used in financing activities (762,271) (204,913)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 79,452 207,336
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 649,726 442,390
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 729,178 649,726
The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Balance as at June 30, 2016

Transactions with certificate holders

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2016
at 7.5% declared on August 26, 2016

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Net income for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of
investments classified as 'available-for-sale'

Balance as at June 30, 2017

Transactions with certificate holders

Final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2017
at 27.5% declared on August 25, 2017

Total comprehensive Income for the year

Net loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Net unrealised diminution on re-measurement of
investments classified as 'available-for-sale'

Balance as at June 30, 2018

HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

The annexed notes from 1 to 31 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Issued, Premium Unappropriated Net unrealised Total
subscribed on issue of profit appreciation /
and paid-up certificates (diminution)
capital on re-measurement
of investments
classified as
‘available-for-sale'
(Rupees in '000)

2,835,000 2,992,500 1,117,740 4,885,153 11,830,393
- - (212,625) - (212,625)
- - (212,625) - (212,625)
- - 1,660,349 - 1,660,349
- - - 1,304,596 1,304,596
- - 1,660,349 1,304,596 2,964,945

2,835,000 2,992,500 2,565,464 6,189,749 14,582,713
- - (779,625) - (779,625)
- - (779,625) - (779,625)
- - (559,283) - (559,283)
- - - (567,845) (567,845)
- - (559,283) (567,845) (1,127,128)

2,835,000 2,992,500 1,226,556 5,621,904 12,675,960

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Executive Officer Director

Chief Financial Officer
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 HBL Growth Fund (Formerly PICIC Growth Fund) was established under a Trust Deed, executed between PICIC Asset
Management Company (Now HBL Asset Management Limited) as the Management Company and Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as the Trustee.

1.2 Through an order dated August 31, 2016, SECP approved merger of PICIC Asset Management Company Limited
with and into HBL Asset Management Limited effective from August 31, 2016 and the trust deed was revised on
April 24, 2018. Effective from September 1, 2016, HBL Asset Management Limited became Management Company
of the Fund which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Habib Bank Limited. The Aga Khan Fund For Economic
Development (AKFED), S.A. is the parent company of Habib Bank Limited.

13 The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the
NBFC Rules, 2003 and has obtained the requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services.
The registered office of the Management Company is located at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main
Clifton Road, Clifton, Karachi.

1.4 The objective of the Fund is to maximize the wealth of the unit holders by investing primarily in listed equities in
the best available opportunities, while considering acceptable risk parameters and applicable rules and regulations.

1.5 As per Regulation 65 of the NBFC Regulations, all closed end funds were required to be converted into open end
schemes upon expiry of five years from November 21, 2007 i.e. by November 21, 2012. However Closed end funds
whose portfolios were frozen as a result of Consent Agreements with Government of Pakistan were allowed to be
converted into open end schemes within three months from the date of the removal of the freezing of the
portfolios. Since the Fund has Frozen Portfolio comprising shares of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited and Sui
Northern Gas Pipelines Limited, its conversion into an open end scheme was deferred.

During the year, the Board of the Management Company (HBL Asset Management Limited) of the Fund in its
meeting held on November 23, 2017 approved the Conversion Plan (the Plan) of the fund for the conversion of the
Fund into an Open End Scheme, with the approval of the Certificate Holders of the Fund to fulfill the requirements
of the merger order dated August 31, 2016. For this purpose, the Plan was presented to and approved by the
Certificate Holders of the Fund in its General Meeting dated January 10, 2018. The Plan was also approved by
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (the Commission) on February 16, 2018.

The Replacement Trust Deed and Replacement Offering Document were approved by SECP vide its letter no.
SCD/AMCW/HGF/338/2018 dated April 18, 2018 and letter no. SCD/AMCW/HGF/400/2018 dated June 7, 2018
respectively. As per the approved Plan, the conversion took place on July 2, 2018 and every Certificate Holder of the
closed end fund was entitled to following for each certificate held;

- One Class-A Unit of the Fund was issued to every Certificate Holders of Fund for each certificate held
representing Frozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

- One Class-B Unit of the Fund was issued to the every Certificate Holder of Fund for each certificate held
representing Unfrozen Portfolio and related assets and liabilities.

The Plan also envisages that Class-A Units would not be redeemable and would be traded on the Pakistan Stock
Exchange. Whereas the Class-B Units can be redeemed at the redemption price.

Since the effective date of the conversion i.e. July 2, 2018 is subsequent to the year end of the Fund, these financial
statements has been prepared as that of a close-ended Fund.

Net assets of the Fund post conversion into an open end scheme are disclosed in Note 28 of these financial
statements. Upon conversion, the open end scheme is known as HBL Growth Fund.

1.6 JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company has assigned an asset manager rating of '"AM2+' (AM Two Plus) to the Management
Company.
1.7 Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company Limited as trustee of the Fund.
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and requirements of the
Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS
Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed have been
followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that investments are
measured at fair value.

23 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Fund's functional and presentation currency.
2.4 Critical accounting estimates and judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the
management to make estimates, judgements and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in application of its accounting
policies. The estimates, judgements and associated assumptions are based on the historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where estimates and assumptions are
significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:

(i) classification and valuation of financial assets (notes 4.2.1.1 and 4.2.1.4); and

(ii) impairment of financial assets (note 4.2.1.5)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS / AMENDMENTS AND IFRS INTERPRETATIONS
3.1 New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are effective for the year ended June 30,
2018.

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2018. These amendments are either not
relevant to the Fund's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Fund's financial statements
other than certain additional disclosures.
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

3.2

3.2.1

Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Amendments as a result January 01, 2017
of the disclosure initiative

Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recognition of deferred tax assets January 01, 2017
for unrealised losses

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs, which are also not relevant for the fund.
New accounting standards / amendments and IFRS interpretations that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periods, beginning on
or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and the amendments (except
IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments') are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have
significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Effective from accounting periods
beginning on or after:

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with customers' - This standard July 01, 2018
will supersede IAS 18, IAS 11, IFRIC 13, 15 and 18 and SIC 31 upon
its effective date.

IFRS 16 'Leases' - This standard will supersede IAS 17 'Leases’ January 01, 2019
upon its effective date.

Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' - Clarification on January 01, 2018
the classification and measurement of share-based payment transactions

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' July 01, 2018
Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' - Amendments January 01, 2019

regarding prepayment features with negative compensation
and modifications of financial liabilities.

IFRS 4 'Insurance Contracts': Amendments An entity choosing to apply the overlay approach

regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9. retrospectively to qualifying financial assets does
so when it first applies IFRS 9. An entity choosing
to apply the deferral approach does so for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Effective from accounting period beginning on or
Statements' and IAS 28 'Investments in Associates after a date to be determined. Earlier application
and Joint Ventures' - Sale or contribution of assets is permitted.

between an investor and its associate or joint

venture

Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and January 01, 2019

Joint Ventures' - Amendments regarding long-term interests
in associates and joint ventures

Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits' - Plan Amendment, January 01, 2019
Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to IAS 40 'Investment Property': Clarification on January 01, 2018
transfers of property to or from investment property

IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance January 01, 2018
Consideration': Provides guidance on transactions where

consideration against non-monetary prepaid asset / deferred

income is denominated in foreign currency.
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after:

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments": January 01, 2019
Clarifies the accounting treatment in relation to determination

of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax

credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax

treatments under IAS 12 'Income Taxes'.

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs, which are also not expected to have
material impact on final reporting of the fund.

3.2.2 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' Impact Assessment

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' was issued on July 24, 2017. This standard is adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective from accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018.

Key requirements of IFRS 9 are as follows;
3.2.2.1 Classification and measurement of financial assets

- All recognized financial asset that are within the scope of IFRS9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value.

- Debtinvestments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows,
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

- Debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
generally measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income.

- All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.

- In addition, under IFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an
acquirer in a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognized in profit or loss.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS 9
requires as follows;

- The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of
that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

- Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair
value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit
losses are recognized.
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of
above provision requirements in relation to debt securities for mutual funds.

3.2.2.2 Impact assessment

Based on the analysis of Fund's financial assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2018 and also considering facts and
circumstances that exists at that date, the Management Company have assessed the impact of IFRS 9 on the
financial statements as follows;

Listed equity securities classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading qualify for
designation as measured at fair value through profit or loss upon application of IFRS 9 with value changes continue
to recognised in profit or loss.

Listed equity securities classified as financial assets at 'available-for-sale' are to be measured at fair value through
profit or loss upon application of IFRS 9 with value changes to be recognised in profit or loss instead of other
comprehensive income. The net unrealised appreciation / (diminution) on these financial assets will be recognised
in income statement on the sale of investments.

3.2.3 Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 14 — Regulatory Deferral Accounts
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

3.3 Change in policy in relation to preparation of income statement and statement of comprehensive income

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 Presentation of Financial Statements allows an entity to prepare either
two performance statements i.e. income statement and statement of comprehensive income, or one performance
statement only i.e. income statement and statement of comprehensive income (showing both items of income or
loss for the period and items of other comprehensive income). The Fund, with effect from July 01, 2017, has
changed its policy with regard to preparation of income statement and other comprehensive income and opted to
prepare two separate performance statements i.e. "income statement" and "statement of comprehensive income"
showing separately both income or loss for the year and items of other comprehensive income in separate
statements.

This change has no impact on the items of income or loss or other comprehensive income recognized in prior year
except that items of other comprehensive income previously presented under ‘Income statement and other
comprehensive income’ in single statement are now presented within 'income statement' and "statement of
comprehensive income' separately.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabilities

at cost.
4.2 Financial instruments
4.2.1 Financial assets

4.2.1.1 Classification

The management company determines the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with the
requirements of International Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39), "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement" at the time of purchase of financial assets and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis. The
classification depends upon the purpose for which the financial assets are acquired. The financial assets of the Fund
are, currently, categorised as follows:
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading

An investment that is acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations in
prices is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading.

b) Available-for-sale
These are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables (b) held-to-maturity investments, or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss - held-for-trading. These are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time which may be sold in
response to the needs for liquidity or change in price.

c) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Currently, there are no investments of the fund classified as 'Loans and receivables'.

4.2.1.2 Regular way contracts

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

4.2.1.3 |Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given including the
transaction cost associated with the acquisition, except in case of "financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
- held-for-trading", in which case the transaction costs are charged to the income statement.

4.2.1.4 Subsequent measurement

a) Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading' and 'available-for-sale'

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets designated by the management as 'at fair value through profit
or loss - held-for-trading' and 'available-for-sale' are valued as follows:

Basis of valuation of equity securities

The investment of the Fund in equity securities is valued on the basis of closing quoted market prices available
at the stock exchange. A security listed on the stock exchange for which no sale is reported on the reporting date
is valued at its last sale price on the next preceding date on which such exchange is open and if no sale is
reported for such date the security is valued at an amount neither higher than the closing ask price nor lower
than the closing bid price.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of financial assets carried 'at fair value through profit or
loss - held-for-trading' are taken to the income statement.

Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of 'available-for-sale' financial assets are recognised as
'other comprehensive income' in the Income Statement of Comprehensive Income until these are derecognised
or impaired. At this time, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised as 'other comprehensive income' is
transferred to income before taxation as capital gain / (loss).

b) Loans and receivables

Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables' are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are recognised under operating income in 'income statement' when financial assets carried at
amortised cost are derecognised or impaired.
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4.2.1.5 Impairment

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available for sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the Income Statement is reclassified from other comprehensive
income to income before taxation.

For financial assets classified as 'loans and receivables'’, a provision for impairment is established when there is
objective evidence that the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms. The
amount of the provision is determined based on the provisioning criteria specified by the SECP.

4.2.1.6 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

4.2.2 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. They are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired.
4.2.2.3 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets and
Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.3 Preliminary expenses and floatation costs

Preliminary expenses and floatation costs represent expenditure incurred prior to the commencement of
operations of the Fund. These costs are being amortised over a period of five years in accordance with the
requirements set out in the Trust Deed of the Fund and the NBFC Regulations.

4.4 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

4.5 Collaterals

Cash collaterals provided by the Fund are identified in the statement of assets and liabilities as margin and are not
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. For collaterals other than cash, if the party to whom the
collaterals are provided has a right by contract or custom to sell or re-pledge the collaterals, the Fund classifies
those collaterals in the statement of assets and liabilities separately from other assets and identifies the assets as
pledged collaterals. Where the party to whom the collaterals are provided does not have the right to sell or
re-pledge, a disclosure of the collaterals provided is made in the notes to the financial statements.

4.6 Taxation
The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting income for the year,

as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed in cash to the unit holders.

The Fund is also exempt from the Provisions of Section 113 (minimum tax) and section 113C (Alternative Corporate
Tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue availing

the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least ninety percent of its accounting income for the year
as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.
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4.7 Proposed distributions

Distributions declared subsequent to the reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and are recognised
in the financial statements in the period in which such distributions are declared.

4.8 Net assets value per certificate

The net assets value (NAV) per certificate, as disclosed on the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by
dividing the net assets of the Fund by the number of certificates in issue at the year end.

4.9 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in 'Income Statement' on the date
on which the transaction takes place.

- Dividend income from equity securities is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established.

- Profit on bank deposits is recognised on a time apportionment basis using the effective interest method.

- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - held-for-trading' are included in 'Income Statement' in the year / period in which they
arise.

4.10 Expenses

All expenses including NAV based expenses (namely management fee, trustee fee, annual fee payable to the SECP,
and selling and marketing expense) are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.

2018 2017
Note = —--m-mem- (Rupees in '000)----------
5. BANK BALANCES
Savings accounts 5.1 729,178 649,726
5.1 These accounts carry return at rates ranging from 4.50% to 7.50 % (2017: 3.75% to 6.60%) per annum.
6. INVESTMENTS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading
Listed equity securities 6.1 5,069,921 6,487,787
Market treasury bills 6.3 - -
5,069,921 6,487,787
Financial assets at 'available-for-sale'
Listed equity securities 6.2 7,042,279 7,610,124
12,112,200 14,097,911
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6.1 Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading'

Shares of listed companies - Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each unless otherwise stated.

___________ Number of shares------—---—- Percentage in relation to
Carrying value Market value - ; . .
Purchases Investee
Name of investee company Asatluly1, during the Bonus/  Salesduring AsatJune 30, as at June 30, as at June 30, A:?r?cla:!on / Capltlal Gain / I?lwdend Net assets Total paid up
2017 year Right issue the year 2018 2018 2018 {diminution) (loss) ncome of the Fund  investments capital

Rupees in '000-
Automobiles Assembler

Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 133,050 119,650 - 138,250 114,450 57,308 36,211 (21,097) (46,679) 3,160 0.29% 0.30% 0.08%
Indus Motor Company Limited 53,660 22,720 - 29,260 47,120 79,486 66,979 (12,507) 426 6,979 0.53% 0.55% 0.06%
Millat Tractors Limited - 87,000 - - 87,000 114,078 103,361 (10,717) - - 0.82% 0.85% 0.20%
Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited 108,500 - - 108,500 - - - - (28,914) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
295,210 229,370 - 276,010 248,570 250,872 206,551 (44,321) (75,167) 10,139 1.63% 1.70%
Automobiles Parts and Accessories
Exide Pakistan Limited 87,250 - - 87,250 - - - - (43,848) 1,091 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
General Tyre and Rubber Company of .
Pakistan Limited 215,200 - - 215,200 - - - (23,238) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Thal Limited ( Par value of Rs 5 per share )
211,600 258,750 - 211,600 258,750 128,545 123,561 (4,984) (8,864) 2,310 0.97% 1.02% 0.32%
514,050 258,750 - 514,050 258,750 128,545 123,561 (4,984) (75,949) 3,401 0.97% 1.02%
Cable & Electrical Goods
Pak Elektron Limited 1,317,500 280,000 - 550,500 1,047,000 105,334 37,127 (68,207) (28,820) 3,473 0.29% 031% 0.21%
TPL Trakker Limited 2,311,000 - - 2,311,000 - - - - (2,823) 323 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
3,628,500 280,000 - 2,861,500 1,047,000 105,334 37,127 (68,207) (31,643) 3,796 0.29% 0.31%
Cement
Cherat Cement Company Limited 1,995,000 - - 1,995,000 - - - - (107,389) 2,730 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
D G Khan Cement Company Limited 1,012,300 443,000 - 1,455,300 - - - - (65,993) 3,663 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauii Cement Company Limited - 3,150,000 - 3,150,000 - - - - 8,400 - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Lucky Cement Limited 555,200 120,000 - 353,750 321,450 235,650 163,274 (72,376) (54,146) 8,588 1.29% 1.35% 0.10%
Pioneer Cement Limited 2,352,100 500,000 - 2,352,100 500,000 26,000 23,430 (2,570) (99,158) 3,696 0.18% 0.19% 0.22%
5,914,600 4,213,000 - 9,306,150 821,450 261,650 186,704 (74,946) (318,286) 18,677 1.47% 1.54%
Chemicals
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 2,650,000 4,401,000 - 5380,000 1,671,000 65,289 52,403 (12,886) (22,618) 2,788 0.41% 0.43% 0.25%
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited - .
LOR - - 599,699 - 599,699 5,289 5,289 - - 0.04% 0.04% 0.24%
ICI Pakistan Limited 101,000 - - 101,000 - - - - (30,405) 834 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
2,751,000 4,401,000 599,699 5,481,000 2,270,699 65,289 57,692 (7,597) (53,023) 3,622 0.46% 0.47%
Commercial Bank
Bank Al-Falah Limited (note 6.1.1) 6,154,000 876,500 - 2,029,500 5,001,000 212,768 261,502 48,734 6,821 6,187 2.06% 2.16% 031%
Bank Al-Habib Limited - 2,068,000 - 320,000 1,748,000 129,049 137,795 8,746 4,400 393 1.09% 1.14% 0.16%
Bank of Punjab Limited - 8,892,500 - 700,000 8,192,500 84,033 98,883 14,850 945 - 0.78% 0.82% 031%
Faysal Bank Limited (note 6.1.2) - 2,842,000 345,000 950,000 2,237,000 49,297 58,162 8,865 3,327 - 0.46% 0.48% 0.15%
Habib Bank Limited * 1,447,800 1,064,100 - 915,600 1,596,300 339,025 265,688 (73,337) (24,717) 6,143 2.10% 2.19% 0.11%
MCB Bank Limited *** 1,406,300 340,300 - 335,400 1,411,200 293,545 279,093 (14,452) (2,177) 19,505 2.20% 2.30% 0.13%
Meezan Bank Limited - 576,000 - 100,000 476,000 38,629 38,899 270 409 - 0.31% 0.32% 0.04%
United Bank Limited (note 6.1.1) 1,578,100 360,400 - 341,400 1,597,100 355,949 269,878 (86,071) (9,532) 19,017 2.13% 2.23% 0.13%
10,586,200 17,019,800 345,000 5,691,900 22,259,100 1,502,295 1,409,900 (92,395) (20,524) 51,245 11.12% 11.64%
Engineering
Aisha Steel Mills Limited 1,470,997 - - - 1,470,997 29,920 23,198 (6,722) - - 0.18% 0.19% 0.21%
Aisha Steel Mills Limited - Pref. Shares 257,327 - - - 257,327 6,094 5,072 (1,022) - - 0.04% 0.04% 0.58%
Aisha Steel Mills Limited - Conv. Cum. Pref.
Shares 1,628,663 - - - 1,628,663 70114 70,033 (81) - - 0.55% 0.58% 55.94%
Amreli Steels Limited 1,532,500 - - 798,500 734,000 90,245 51,784 (38,461) (24,062) 3,065 0.41% 0.43% 0.25%
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited 206,100 - - 206,100 - - - - (6,755) 309 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
International Industries Limited 240,200 190,700 - 195,500 235,400 74,363 54,681 (19,682) (8,815) 1,182 0.43% 0.45% 0.20%
International Steels Limited** 1,185,000 170,000 - 673,700 681,300 86,715 69,288 (17,427) (10,978) 2,717 0.55% 0.57% 0.16%
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited - 571,500 - - 571,500 42,468 35,102 (7,366) - - 0.28% 0.29% 0.23%
6,520,787 932,200 - 1,873,800 5,579,187 399,919 309,158 (90,761) (50,610) 7,273 2.44% 2.55%
Fertilizer
Engro Corporation Limited 977,600 102,000 - 127,500 952,100 304,568 298,826 (5,742) (5,709) 19,823 2.36% 2.47% 0.18%
Engro Fertilizers Limited 1,526,500 1,925,000 - 402,500 3,049,000 191,019 228,401 37,382 3,478 19,826 1.80% 1.89% 0.23%
Fauiji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited 1,195,500 - - 1,195,500 - - - - (10,764) 120 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited - 1,922,500 - 747,000 1,175,500 108,074 116,245 8,171 4,827 3431 0.92% 0.96% 0.09%
3,699,600 3,949,500 - 2,472,500 5,176,600 603,661 643,472 39,811 (8,169) 43,200 5.08% 5.32%
Glass and Ceramics
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited - 125,000 - - 125,000 2,500 2,633 133 - - 0.02% 0.02% 0.05%
- 125,000 - - 125,000 2,500 2,633 133 - - 0.02% 0.02%
Insurance
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited 1,260,000 - - 1,260,000 - - - - 375 - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
TPL Direct Insurance Limited (note 6.1.2) 321,388 1,500 21,438 342,826 1,500 31 32 1 (1,059) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
1,581,388 1,500 21,438 1,602,826 1,500 31 32 1 (684) - 0.00% 0.00%
0il and Gas Exploration Company
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 78,180 104,260 - - 182,440 278,443 274,787 (3,656) - 685 2.17% 2.27% 0.17%
0il and Gas Development Company Limited 1,837,200 160,000 - 288,000 1,709,200 241,766 265,986 24,220 4,749 17,784 2.10% 2.20% 0.04%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited 338,700 90,600 - 20,250 409,050 205,110 274,796 69,686 3,182 14,040 2.17% 2.27% 0.17%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 850,000 789,200 - 95,000 1,544,200 263,294 331,849 68,555 4,283 12,383 2.62% 2.74% 0.08%
3,104,080 1,144,060 - 403,250 3,844,890 988,613 1,147,418 158,805 12,214 44,892 9.06% 9.48%
0il and Gas Marketing Companies
Hascol Petroleum Limited - 140,000 - - 140,000 43,665 43,926 261 - - 0.35% 0.36% 0.10%
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited - 640,700 - 35,000 605,700 186,719 192,800 6,081 593 6,057 1.52% 1.59% 0.19%
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 416,000 1,280,200 - 616,000 1,080,200 125,264 108,258 (17,006) (6,093) 5,250 0.85% 0.89% 0.17%
416,000 2,060,900 - 651,000 1,825,900 355,648 344,984 (10,664) (5,500) 11,307 2.72% 2.84%
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.............. Number of shares-————r Percentage in refationto
Carrying value Market value . N N -
Purch Invest
Name of investee company Asatluly 1, d::icn a::: Bonus / Sales during  As atJune 30, as at June 30, as at June 30, Ap!’re'clat‘lon / Capital Gain /  Dividend Net assets Total n:;s uee
2017 & Right issue the year 2018 2018 2018 {diminution) (loss) Income of the Fund  investments P ; P
year capital
Rupees in '000.
Pharmaceuticals
Abbott Laboratories (Pak) Limited 230,150 - 230,150 - - - - (49,051) 4,518 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
AGP Limited - 50,000 - 50,000 - - - - (263) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare - R
Pakistan Limited 450 - - 450 - , 16 - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited 561,100 - - 561,100 - - - - (10,443) 1,683 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The Searle Company Limited (note 6.1.2) 178,650 98,950 52,520 158,900 171,220 71,837 58,129 (13,708) (15,582) 2,101 0.46% 0.48% 0.09%
Wyeth Pakistan Limited 9,900 - - 9,900 - - - - (500) 666 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
980,250 148,950 52,520 1,010,500 171,220 71,837 58,129 (13,708) (75,823) 8,968 0.46% 0.48%
Power Generation & Distribution
Hub Power Company Limited 2,204,200 1,097,900 - 228,000 3,074,100 343,557 283,309 (60,248) (4,462) 19,301 2.24% 2.34% 0.27%
K-Electric Limited 4,765,000 8,642,000 - 4,765,000 8,642,000 54,477 49,087 (5,390) (1,794) - 0.39% 0.41% 0.03%
Kot Addu Power Company Limited 1,460,500 - - 1,460,500 - - - - (3,461) 5175 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
8,429,700 9,739,900 - 6,453,500 11,716,100 398,034 332,396 (65,638) (9,716) 24,476 2.62% 2.75%
Textile Composite
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited 640,000 - - 640,000 - - - - (1,268) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat (Chunian) Limited 100,000 - - 100,000 - - - - (39) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Mills Limited 756,000 611,000 - 299,400 1,067,600 171,133 150,446 (20,687) (1,444) 4,943 1.19% 1.25% 0.30%
1,496,000 611,000 - 1,039,400 1,067,600 171,133 150,446 (20,687) (2,751) 4,943 1.19% 1.25%
TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
Systems Limited - 590,000 - - 590,000 56,760 59,718 2,958 - 770 0.47% 0.49% 0.53%
590,000 - - 590,000 56,760 59,718 2,958 - 770 0.47% 0.49%
Tobacco
Pakistan Tobacco Company Limited 30,400 - - 30,400 - - - - (6,183) - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
30,400 - - 30,400 - - - - (6,183) - 0.00% 0.00%
Total June 30, 2018 49,947,765 45,704,930 1,018,657 39,667,786 57,003,566 5,362,121 5,069,921 (292,200) (721,814) 236,709 40.00% 41.86%
Total June 30, 2017 87,313,998 28,009,331 - 65,375,564 49,947,765 5,671,020 6,487,787 816,767 578,978 260,086 44.50% 46.02%
* Sponsor of the Management Company
** Related party due to common directorship
*** Connected person due to holding more than 10% certificates
6.1.1 4 million shares of Bank Al-Falah Limited and 0.8 million shares of United Bank Limited having market value

amounting to Rs. 209.16 million and Rs. 135.18 million, respectively, (2017: 1 million shares of Cherat Cement
Company Limited and 5 million shares of Bank Al-Falah Limited having market value amounting to Rs. 178.7 million
and Rs. 201 million, respectively) have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
as collateral against trading facility in the Stock Exchange.

6.1.2 These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's entitlement declared by the investee companies.
Finance Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received
by the shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by
the investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the
Management Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association
of Pakistan, has filed a petition in Honorable Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not
applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the
final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus
announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 1.363 million at June 30, 2018 (June 30, 2017:
Rs. Nil) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of Income tax. Management is of the view that the
decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its
investments at year end.

6.2 Available-for-sale

Shares of listed companies - Fully paid up ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each unless stated otherwise

Number of sh: Carmi Percentage in relation to
arrying value Market value L N . .

Name of investee company Asatluly1, :ur.:ha::s Bonus / Sales during  As at June 30, as at June 30, as at June 30, A:?re,m:,m" / Capnlal Gain / Ideend Net assets Total Inv;stee

2017 uring the Right issue the year 2018 2018 2018 (diminution) (loss) neome of the Fund  investments pai _up

year capital
0il and Gas Marketing Company
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 15,836,172 - 3,167,234 - 19,003,406 1,307,980 6,048,974 4,740,994 - 427,577 47.72% 49.94% 6.99%
(note 6.2.1and 6.2.2)

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 9,911,246 - - - 9,911,246 112,395 993,305 880,910 - 74,334 7.84% 8.20% 1.56%
Total June 30, 2018 25,747,418 - 3,167,234 - 28,914,652 1,420,375 7,042,279 5,621,904 - 501,911 55.56% 58.14%
Total June 30, 2017 25,747,418 - - - 25,747,418 1,420,375 7,610,124 6,189,749 - 277,133 52.18% 53.98%
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6.2.1 The above mentioned shares of Pakistan State Oil Company Limited and Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited are
blocked / frozen by an order of the Government of Pakistan (GoP) as the same form part of a strategic shareholding
under the control of the GoP. As a result, the Fund is restricted from selling, transferring, encumbering or otherwise
disposing of or dealing with any interest in the said shares, including any future bonus / right shares in respect
thereof. Consequently, the exposure limit mentioned in regulation 55 of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 does not apply
to the above frozen shares.

6.2.2 These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's entitlement declared by the investee companies.
Finance Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received
by the shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by
the investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the
Management Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association
of Pakistan, has filed a petition in Honorable Sindh High Court to declare the amendments brought in Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collective investment schemes as null and void and not
applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part | of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Honorable Sindh High Court has granted stay order till the
final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus
announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs. 50.408 million at June 30, 2018 (June 30,
2017: Rs. Nil) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of Income tax. Management is of the view that
the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its
investments at year end.

6.3 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - held-for-trading - Market treasury bills

Market
Balance as at June 30, 2018 Market value as
As at Purchase . As at ; ) value as a
. Sales during Capital Gain/  Markup a percentage of
Issue date Tenure July 1, during the the vear June 30, (loss) income percentage total
2017 year ¥ 2018 Market  Appreciation / of net )
investments

Carrying value
Tving value (diminution) assets

(R in '000).
{Rupees in '000)

February 15, 2018 3 months - 500,000 500,000 - - - - (66) 760

Total June 30, 2018 - 500,000 500,000 - - - - (66) 760

Total - June 30, 2017

6.4 Net unrealised gain on re-measurement of investments
classified as available-for-sale

Market value of investments 6.2 7,042,279 7,610,124
Cost of investments 6.2 1,420,375 1,420,375
5,621,904 6,189,749
7. DIVIDEND AND PROFIT RECEIVABLE
Dividend receivable 200,752 168,816
Profit receivable on bank deposits 4,685 2,976
205,437 171,792
8. SECURITY DEPOSIT AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposits with:
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 275 175
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
Other receivables 401 7
3,176 2,682
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9.1

9.2

9.3

10.

10.1

10.1.1

2018 2017
Note ~ —---me- (Rupees in '000)----------

PAYABLE TO THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
Remuneration of the Management Company 9.1 21,126 24,297
Sindh sales tax on remuneration of the

Management Company 9.2 2,746 3,159
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services,
accounting, operation and valuation services 9.3 1,056 1,215

24,928 28,671

Under the provisions of the Offering Document of the Fund the Management Company is entitled to a
Remuneration at the rate of 2% of the average annual net asset of the fund. The remuneration is paid to the
Management Company monthly in arrears. The remuneration is also subject to Sindh Sales Tax on services at
applicable rate.

The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13 percent (2017: 13 percent) on
the remuneration of management company through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

As per Regulation 60(3)(s) of the amended NBFC Regulations dated November 25, 2015, fee and expenses
pertaining to registrar services, accounting, operation and valuation services related to a Collective Investment
Scheme (CIS) are chargeable to the CIS, maximum upto 0.1 percent of the average annual net assets or the actual
cost whichever is lower. Accordingly, the Management Company has charged aforementioned expenses to the
extent of 0.1% of the average annual net assets, being lower amount, to the Fund during the year.

2018 2017
—————————— (Rupees in '000)----------
PAYABLE TO THE TRUSTEE
Remuneration of the Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 10.1 726 1,725
CDS charges payable 60 122
786 1,847

The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the
Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The fee is paid to the Trustee
monthly in arrears.

The tariff structure applicable to the Fund is as follows:

Amount of Funds Under Management (Average NAV) Tariff per annum

Upto Rs. 250 million 0.20% per annum

On amount exceeding Rs. 250 million upto Rs. 500 million Rs. 500,000 plus 0.15% per annum on amount
exceeding Rs. 250 million

On amount exceeding Rs. 500 million upto Rs. 2,000 million Rs. 875,000 plus 0.08% per annum on amount
exceeding Rs. 500 million

On amount exceeding Rs. 2,000 million upto Rs. 5,000 million  Rs. 2,075,000 plus 0.06% per annum on amount

exceeding Rs. 2,000 million
On amount exceeding Rs. 5,000 million Rs. 3,875,000 plus 0.05% per annum on amount
exceeding Rs. 5,000 million

Annual Report-2018



HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Note = ----momm- (Rupees in '000)----------
11. PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN
Annual fee 11.1 12,397 13,508
11.1 Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, 2008 a collective investment scheme categorised as an equity

scheme is required to pay as annual fee to the SECP, an amount equal to 0.095 percent of the average annual net
assets of the scheme. The fee is payable annually in arrears.

2018 2017
Note = ------mm- (Rupees in '000)----------
12, ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Provision for Federal Excise Duty and additional
Sales tax on Management Fee 12.1 125,303 125,303
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 12.2 40,775 40,775
Withholding tax payable 530 39
Brokerage 517 642
Auditor's remuneration 783 580
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited charges 60 60
Printing charges 2,548 335
170,516 167,734
12.1 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remuneration.

The Sindh Provincial Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) on the remuneration of the Management
Company and sales load through Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act 2011 effective from July 1, 2011. During the year
SST at the rate of 13 percent (2017: 13 percent) was charged on the remuneration of Fund Manager and sales load.

While disposing the above petition through order dated July 16, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be
ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authorities
subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the
decision.

The Finance Act 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no
provision is charged during the year ended June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company, has made a
provision on FED on remuneration of Management Company, aggregating to Rs. 125.303 million. (2017: Rs.
125.303 million). Had the provision not been made, the Net Asset Value per certificate as at June 30, 2018 would
have been higher by Rs. 0.442 (2017: Rs. 0.442 ) per certificate.

12.2 WORKERS' WELFARE FUND AND SINDH WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

The Finance Act 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 (WWF Ordinance).
As a result of this amendment it may be construed that all Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) / mutual funds
whose income exceeds Rs. 0.5 million in a tax year, have been brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance,
thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable
income, whichever is higher. In this regard, a constitutional petition has been filed by certain CISs through their
trustees in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of WWF to the CISs, which is pending
adjudication.

The Finance Act 2015 incorporated an amendment in WWF Ordinance by excluding CIS from the definition of
Industrial Establishment, and consequently CIS are no more liable to pay contribution to WWF with effect from July
1, 2015.

Subsequently, the Ministry of Labour and Manpower (the Ministry) vide its letter dated July 15, 2010 clarified that
“Mutual Fund(s) is a product which is being managed / sold by the Asset Management Companies which are liable
to contribute towards Workers Welfare Fund under Section 4 of the WWF Ordinance. However, the income on
Mutual Fund(s), the product being sold, is exempted under the law ibid”.

Annual Report-2018



HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Further, the Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) issued a letter dated October 6, 2010 to
the Members (Domestic Operation) North and South FBR. In the letter, reference was made to the clarification
issued by the Ministry stating that mutual funds are a product and their income are exempted under the law ibid.
The Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue directed that the Ministry’s letter may be circulated
amongst field formations for necessary action. Following the issuance of FBR Letter, show cause notice which were
issued by taxation office to certain mutual funds for payment of levy under WWF were withdrawn. However, the
Secretary (Income Tax Policy) Federal Board of Revenue vide letter January 4, 2011 cancelled ab-initio clarificatory
letter dated October 6, 2010 on applicability of WWF on mutual funds and issued show cause notices to certain
mutual funds for collecting WWEF. In respect of such show cause notices, certain mutual funds have been granted
stay by High Court of Sindh on the basis of the pending constitutional petition in the said court as referred above.

During the year ended June 30, 2013, the Larger Bench of the Sindh High Court (SHC) issued a judgment in response
to a petition in another similar case in which it is held that the amendments introduced in the WWF Ordinance
through Finance Acts, 2006 and 2008 do not suffer from any constitutional or legal infirmity.

During the year ended June 30, 2014, the Peshawar High Court on a petition filed by certain aggrieved parties
(other than the mutual funds) has adjudicated that the amendments introduced in the Workers Welfare Fund
Ordinance, 1971 through the Finance Acts of 1996 and 2009 lacks the essential mandate to be introduced and
passed through the money bill under the Constitution of Pakistan and hence have been declared as ultra vires the
Constitution.

The Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) passed a judgment on November 10, 2016, deciding that amendments made
through the Finance Acts through which WWF was levied are unlawful, as such are not in nature of tax; therefore,
it could not be introduced through the money bill. However, the Federal Board of Revenue has filed a review
petition in the SCP against the said judgment, which is pending for hearing in the SCP.

Further, the Government of Sindh also introduced levy of the Sindh Workers” Welfare Fund (SWWF) through the
Sindh Workers’ Welfare Act, 2014. The Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan, in the previous years based on opinion
obtained from the tax consultants, concluded that SWWF is not applicable on mutual funds. MUFAP also wrote to
the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) that mutual funds are not establishments and are pass through vehicles; therefore,
they do not have any worker and, as a result, no SWWEF is payable by them. SRB responded that since as mutual
funds are included in definition of financial institutions in the Financial Institutions (Recovery of Finance)
Ordinance, 2001, SWWF is payable by them. MUFAP has taken up the matter with the concerned ministry [Sindh
Finance Ministry] for appropriate resolution of the matter.

Considering the above developments, the Management Company assessed the position of the Fund with regard to
reversal of provision of WWF and recognition of provision of SWWF, and decided that:

- The Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized from July 01, 2014, and

- Provision computed for SWWF should be adjusted against provision of WWF, as the SCP declared WWF
unlawful. It was also decided that if any further provision is required, then it should be recognized in books of
the Fund. If provision of WWF is in excess of provision required for SWWF, the remaining provision of WWF
should be carried forward unless further clarification is received from the MUFAP.

As a result, the Management Company assessed that no further provision is required for SWWF and additional
provision of WWF should be carried forward till the matter is cleared.

In the wake of the aforesaid developments, the MUFAP called its Extraordinary General Meeting (EOGM) on
January 11, 2017, wherein the MUFAP recommended to its members that effective from January 12, 2017,
Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF) recognised earlier should be reversed in light of the decision made by the Supreme
Court of Pakistan; and Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF) should be recognized effective from May 21, 2015.

MUFAP also communicated the above-mentioned decisions to the Securities and Exchange of Commission (SECP)
through its letter dated January 12, 2017, and the SECP through its letter dated February 01, 2017, advised that the
adjustment should be prospective and supported by adequate disclosures.

As a result of the above recommendations of the MUFAP, the Fund on January 12, 2017, reversed the provision of
WWF amounting to Rs. 118.107 million. Further, the Fund has recognised provision for SWWF amounting to Rs.
40.775 million (2017: 40.775 million) in these financial statements. Had the provision not been made, the net asset
value per certificate as at June 30, 2018 would have higher by Rs 0.1438 (2017: Rs. 0.1438 ) per certificate.
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13. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2018 2017 2018 2017
Numberof (Rupees in '000)----------
Certificates in '000

220,500 220,500 Fully paid ordinary certificates
of Rs.10 each Issued for cash 2,205,000 2,205,000
63,000 63,000 Issued as bonus certificates 630,000 630,000
283,500 283,500 2,835,000 2,835,000
13.1 Pattern of certificate holding as at June 30, 2018 is as follows:
Number of e
Category certificate Certificates Percentage
held
holders
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Individuals 9,242 95,174,420 33.57%
Associated companies and Directors 3 6,627,300 2.34%
Insurance companies 5 42,691,625 15.06%
Banks and DFls 19 53,246,324 18.78%
NBFCs 2 106,012 0.04%
Foreign companies 6 59,650,650 21.04%
Modarabas 1 15,000 0.01%
Others 93 25,988,669 9.17%
9,371 283,500,000 100.00%
Pattern of certificate holding as at June 30, 2017 was as follows:
Number of g
Category certificate Certificates Percentage
held
holders

Individuals 9,483 99,791,198 35.20%
Associated companies and Directors 2 218,000 0.08%
Insurance companies 7 42,871,602 15.12%
Banks and DFls 14 53,266,824 18.79%
NBFCs 9 6,575,812 2.32%
Foreign companies 7 52,308,650 18.45%
Modarabas 1 15,000 0.01%
Others 104 28,452,914 10.04%

9,627 283,500,000 100.00%

14. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017.

15. NET ASSET VALUE PER CERTIFICATE

Net assets 12,675,960 14,582,713
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2018 2017
----- Number of certificates -----
------- in '000" -----
Total certificates in issue 283,500 283,500
--------------- (Rupees)-------------
Net assets value per certificate 44.71 51.44
—————————— (Rupees in '000)----------
16. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Annual statutory audit fee 360 360
Fee for half yearly review 165 165
Other certifications and out of pocket 476 378
1,001 903

17. TAXATION

No provision for taxation has been made as the Fund has incurred a net loss and as such is exempt from Income Tax
as per Clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Fund is also exempt from
provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of Second Schedule to the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. Hence, no provision with respect to tax has been recognized in the 'Income statement'.

2018 2017
—————————— (Rupees in '000)----------
18. (LOSS) / EARNINGS PER CERTIFICATE
There is no dilutive effect on earnings per certificate as computed below:
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (559,283) 1,660,348

Weighted average number of certificates 283,500,000 283,500,000
-------------- Rupees--------------
Basic (loss) / earnings per certificate (1.97) 5.86
19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
---------------- As at June 30, 2018----------------
Financial assets
at fair value .
through profit Loaps aglld Afvallabll € Total
or loss - held receivables  -for -sale
for trading
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Assets
Bank balances - 729,178 - 729,178
Investments 5,069,921 - 7,042,279 12,112,200
Dividend and profit receivable - 205,437 - 205,437
5,069,921 934,615 7,042,279 13,046,815
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Liabilities . .
X Financial
at fairvalue . ...
liabilities
through . Total
: at amortised
profit
cost
or loss
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 22,182 22,182
Payable to the Trustee - 702 702
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 3,908 3,908
Payable against purchase of investments - 28,631 28,631
Unclaimed dividend - 136,773 136,773
- 192,196 192,196
---------------- As at June 30, 2017----------------
Financial assets
at fair value .
through profit Loaps and Available Total
or loss - held receivables -for -sale
for trading
—————————————— Rupees in '000 --------------
Assets
Bank balances - 649,726 - 649,726
Investments 6,487,787 - 7,610,124 14,097,911
Dividend and profit receivable - 171,792 - 171,792
6,487,787 821,518 7,610,124 14,919,429
---------------- As at June 30, 2017----------------
Liabilities . .
: Financial
at fairvalue . ...
liabilities
through - Total
: at amortised
profit
cost
or loss
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 25,512 25,512
Payable to the Trustee - 1,648 1,648
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 1,617 1,617
Payable against purchase of investments - 8,219 8,219
Unclaimed dividend - 119,419 119,419
- 156,415 156,415
20. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS
20.1 Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Management Company, Habib Bank Limited

being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, other collective
investment schemes managed by the Management Company, directors and officers of the Management Company,
directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership of the units of the Fund.

20.2 Remuneration payable to Management Company and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of

the NBFC Regulations and the Trust Deed respectively.

20.3 Details of the transactions with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in the

financial information are as follows:
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20.4 Details of significant transactions carried out by the Fund with connected persons and balances with them, other
than disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, as at year end, are as follows:

20.5.1  Transactions during the year

Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company 260,360 284,368
Sales tax on remuneration to the Management Company 33,847 36,968
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, accounting,

operation and valuation services 13,018 14,218

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Dividend Income 6,143 22,510
Profit on savings accounts 1,404 -
Bank Charges 1 -

MCB Bank Limited
Connected person due to holding more than 10% certificates

Dividend Income 19,505 23,701
Profit on savings accounts 13,368 20,148
Bank charges 34 29
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee fee 8,909 9,587
CDS charges 831 987
CDC annual listing fee 497 362

20.5.2 Balances as at the year end

Management Company

Payable to the Management Company 21,126 24,297
Sindh Sales Tax on Management Company's remuneration 2,746 3,159
Allocation of expenses related to registrar services, accounting,

operation and valuation services 1,056 1,215

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor

Bank Balances 1,281 -
Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited - Associated Company

Certificates held: 142,500 (2017: 200,000 certificates) 1,425 2,000
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Trustee fee 726 1,725
Security deposit with the Trustee 275 175
CDS Charges Payable 60 122

MCB Bank Limited - Connected person due to
holding more than 10% certificates

Bank Balances 167,595 141,571
Certificates held: 43,482,858 (2017: 43,482,858 certificates) 434,829 434,829
Profit receivable 859 597

Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited - Connected person due
to holding more than 10% certificates

Certificates held: 30,406,721 (2017: 30,406,721 certificates) 304,067 304,067
Pension Reserves Investment Trust Fund - Connected person due
to holding more than 10% certificate
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21.

21.1

21.1.1

21.1.2

21.1.3

Certificates held: 36,096,714 (2017: 30,953,055 certificates) 360,967 309,531

Directors and Executives of the Management Company
Certificates held:18,000 (2017: 18,000 certificates) 180 180

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight
of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's
risk management policies.

The Fund's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Fund's activities.

The Fund’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result
of changes in market prices.

The Management Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure in marketable securities by following the
internal risk management policies and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee of the Fund
and the regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present, is not exposed to currency risk as its all transactions are
carried out in Pak Rupees.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in market interest rates.

a) Cash flow interest rate risk
The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the period would
have increased / (decreased) by Rs. 7.291 million ( 2017: Rs 6.271 million ), had the interest rates on savings
accounts with banks increased / (decreased) by 100 basis points.

b) Fair value interest rate risk

Since the Fund currently does not have any fixed rate instruments that are impacted by market interest rates,
therefore, it is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes

are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.
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The Fund is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Fund and classified on the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss held-for-trading' and
'available-for -sale'. To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity securities, the Fund diversifies its
portfolio within the eligible stocks prescribed in the Trust Deed. The Fund’s constitutive document / regulations also
limit individual equity securities to no more than 10% of net assets, or issued capital of the investee company,
whichever is lower, and sector exposure limit to 30% of net assets. However, relaxation in this regard has been
obtained from the regulators in respect of frozen investments classified as 'available-for-sale' as disclosed in note
6.2.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in the fair value of the Fund's equity securities on June 30, 2018, net assets of the
Fund would have increased / decreased by Rs. 253.496 million (2017: Rs. 324.389 million) as a result of gains /
losses on equity securities in 'fair value through profit and loss - held-for-trading' category, with corresponding
effect on operating income reported in 'Income statement'.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in the fair value of the Fund's equity securities on June 30, 2018, net assets of the
Fund would have increased / decreased by Rs. 352.114 million (2017: Rs. 380.506 million) as a result of gains /
losses on equity securities in 'available-for-sale' category, with corresponding effect on other comprehensive
income reported in 'Statement of comprehensive income'.

21.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter parties fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk
mainly arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions and credit exposure arising as a result of dividend
receivable on equity securities and profit receivable on bank deposits.

Management of credit risk

For banks and financial institutions, the Fund keeps deposits with reputed institutions. Credit risk on account of
dividend receivable is minimal due to the statutory protections. All transactions in listed securities are settled / paid
for upon delivery using the system of National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited. The risk of default in these
transactions is considered minimal due to inherent systematic measures taken therein. The Fund's policy is to enter
into financial contracts in accordance with the investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee, its
Trust Deed and the requirements of the NBFC rules and the regulations and the guidelines given by the SECP from
time to time.

The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the balances in deposit accounts with Banks with which the
Fund has kept such balances as at June 30, 2018:

Latest available

Balance as at

Name of the bank published rating Rating agency
June 30, 2018 as at June 30, 2018
MCB Bank Limited 167,595 AA- PACRA
JS Bank Limited 560,282 AA- PACRA
Habib Bank Limited 1,281 AAA JCR-VIS
Soneri Bank Limited 20 AA- PACRA
729,178
Balance as at Latest available
Name of the bank published rating Rating agency
June 30, 2017 as at June 30, 2017
NIB Bank Limited
(merged into MCB from
July 7, 2017) 141,571 AA- PACRA
JS Bank Limited 508,136 AA- PACRA
Soneri Bank Limited 19 AA- PACRA
649,726
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The maximum exposure to credit risk before considering any collateral as at June 30, 2018 and June 30, 2017 is the
carrying amount of the financial assets. Investments in equity securities, however, are not exposed to credit risk.
None of these assets are 'impaired' nor 'past due but not impaired'.

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the
same counterparty, or where a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Fund's portfolio of
financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy counterparties
thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk.

The Fund's major bank balance is held with one Bank. Management believes that such bank is a reputed institution.
213 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligations
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through other
facilities. The Fund manages the liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash balance with banks and marketable
securities.

The Fund has a policy to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can
be readily disposed off. The Fund's listed securities are considered readily realisable, as they are listed on the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

The Fund is not materially exposed to liquidity risk as all obligations / commitments of the Fund are short-term in
nature and are restricted to the extent of available liquidity and significant assets of the Fund are readily disposable
in the market.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

As at June 30, 2018

Total Upto three More than Over one
months three months year
and upto
one year
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------

Payable to the Management Company 22,182 22,182 - -
Payable to the Trustee 702 702 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,908 3,908 - -
Payable against purchase of investments 28,631 28,631 - -
Unclaimed dividend 136,773 136,773 - -
192,196 192,196 - -

As at June 30, 2017

Total Upto three More than Over one
months three months year
and upto
one year
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------

Payable to the Management Company 25,512 25,512 - -
Payable to the Trustee 1,648 1,648 - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,617 1,617 - -
Payable against purchase of investments 8,219 8,219 - -
Unclaimed dividend 119,419 119,419 - -
156,415 156,415 - -
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22. FAIR VALUE AND CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying
values and the fair value estimates.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention or
requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the
quoted market prices at the close of trading on the reporting date. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs
used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
(level 1);

- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and

- Fair value measurements using Inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including
their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

June 30, 2018

Carrying amount Fair Value
Other
financial
Available Held-for- Loansand assets/
for-sale  trading receivables liabilities  Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(Rupees in '000)

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investment in listed equity securities 5,069,921 7,042,279 - - 12,112,200 12,112,200 - - 12,112,200
5,069,921 7,042,279 - - 12,112,200 12,112,200 - - 12,112,200
Financial assets not measured at fair value 23.1
Bank balances - - 729,178 - 729,178 - - - -
Dividend and profit receivable - - 205,437 - 205,437 - - - -
- - 934,615 - 934,615 - - - -

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 23.1

Payable to the Management Company - - 22,182 22,182 - - - -
Payable to the Trustee - - - 702 702 - - - -
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - 3,908 3,908 - - - -
Payable against purchase of investments - - 28,631 28,631 - - - -
Unclaimed dividend - - 136,773 136,773

192,196 192,196 - - - -
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June 30, 2017

Carrying amount Fair Value
Other
financial
Available  Held-for- Loansand assets/
for-sale  trading receivables liabilities Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
On-balance sheet financial instruments (Rupees in '000)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investment in listed equity securities 6,487,787 7,610,124 - - 14,097,911 14,097,911 - - 14,097,911
6,487,787 7,610,124 - - 14,097,911 14,097,911 - - 14,097,911
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Bank balances - - 649,726 - 649,726
Dividend and profit receivable - - 171,792 - 171,792
- - 821,518 - 821,518
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Payable to the Management Company - - - 25,512 25,512
Payable to the Trustee - - - 1,648 1,648
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - - - 1,617 1,617
Payable against purchase of investments - - - 8,219 8,219
Unclaimed dividend - - - 119,419 119,419

- - - 156,415 156,415

23.1 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short
term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair
value.

23.2 Valuation techniques

For level 1 equity investments at fair value through profit or loss - held for trading and level 1 equity investment
classified as available for sale, Fund uses daily quotation shares which are taken from Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited at reporting date.

23.3 Transfers during the year
There were no transfers between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.
23. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for certificate holders and to maintain a strong capital base to meet unexpected
losses or opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Fund may adjust dividends paid to certificate holders or
issue new certificates.

24, LIST OF TOP TEN BROKERS / DEALERS BY PERCENTAGE OF COMMISSION PAID
Top ten brokers during the year ended June 30, 2018

1 Next Capital Limited

2 Intermarket Securities Limited

3 Optimus Capital Management (Private) Limited
4 DJM Securities (Private) Limited

5 JS Global Capital Limited

6 Taurus Securities Limited

7 Insight Securities (Private) Limited

8 BMA Capital Management Limited

9 EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited

10 Al - Falah Securities (Private) Limited
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Top ten brokers during the year ended June 30, 2017

1 Next Capital Limited

2 BMA Capital Management Limited

3 Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited
4 Taurus Securities Limited

5 WE Financial Services Limited

6 DJM Securities (Private) Limited

7 1GI Finex Securities Limited

8 Intermarket Securities Limited

9 JS Global Capital Limited

10 Global Securities Pakistan Limited

25. PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:

| Name | Designation | Qualification |Experience in years |
Farid Ahmed Khan Chief Executive Officer CFA, MBA 25+

Muhammad Imran Chief Investment Officer MBA - Finance 18+

Jawad Naeem Specialist - Equity MBA, CFA Level 1 10+

Adeel Abdul Wahab Specialist - Equity ACCA 10+

Noman Ameer Manager Risk MBA - Finance 11+

Sateesh Balani Head of Research CFA, MBA 7+

26. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held on August 25, 2017, October 27, 2017, November 23, 2017,
February 26, 2018 and April 23, 2018 respectively. Information in respect of the attendance by the Directors in the
meetings is given below:

S.N N f Direct Number of meetings Meeti t attended
.No. ame of Director Held Attended Leave eetings not attende
1 Mr. Agha Sher Shah!? 2 2 - -

2 Mr. Farid Ahmed Khan 5 5 - -

3 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 5 3 2 November 23, 2017 & April 23, 2018
4 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 5 5 - -

5 Mr. Rizwan Haider 5 4 1 October 27,2017
6 Mr. Shabbir Hussain Hashmi? 1 1 - -

7 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar3 2 1 1 February 26,2018
8 Mr. Nadeem Abdullah # 4 4 - -

9 Mr. Towfiq Habib Chinoy > 3 3 - -

10  Mr. Salahuddin Manzoor © 3 3 -

1 Appointed on November 23, 2017

2 Appointed on February 26, 2018

3 Appointed on December 4, 2017

4 Resigned on February 26, 2018
5 Resigned on November 23, 2017
6 Resigned on November 30, 2017

27. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

In accordance with the directive 23 of 2016 dated July 20, 2016 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan, the total expense ratio of the Fund for the year ended June 30, 2018 is 2.71% (2017: 2.86%) which
includes 0.38% (2017: 0.60%) representing government levy and SECP fee.

28. NON ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE - CONVERSION FROM CLOSED END FUND TO OPEN END
SCHEME

As disclosed in note 1.5, the Fund converted into an open end scheme effective July 2, 2018. The net assets
attributed to the Class A units and Class B units as per conversion plan are as follows;
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HBL Growth Fund (Formerly Picic Growth Fund)

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended June 30, 2018

Class A Class B Total
-------------- Rupees in '000 --------------

Assets
Bank balances - 729,178 729,178
Investments 7,042,279 5,069,921 12,112,200
Dividend and profit receivable 190,034 15,403 205,437
Security deposits and other receivables 100 3,076 3,176

7,232,413 5,817,578 13,049,991
Liabilities
Payable to the Management Company - 24,928 24,928
Payable to the Trustee - 786 786
Payable to Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan - 12,397 12,397
Payable against purchase of investments - 28,631 28,631
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 170,516 170,516
Unclaimed dividend - 136,773 136,773

- 374,031 374,031
Net Assets as at June 30, 2018 7,232,413 5,443,547 12,675,960
Number of units allotted 283,500 283,500
Net assets value per unit 25.51 19.20
29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on August 31, 2018 by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company.

30. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better
presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during the
current year.

31. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand Rupees.

For HBL Asset Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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INCOME STATEMENT OF HBL ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
IN RELATION TO HBL GROWTH FUND (rormerly pPICIC GROWTH FUND) (SCHEME)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Rupees in '000'

INCOME
Management fee 260,360
Dividend income -
260,360
EXPENSES
Salaries and allowances 82,070
Defined benefit plan 1,256
Directors remuneration 254
Office rent 9,986
Telephone expenses 849
Electricity and water charges 1,989
Office Repair & maintenance 4,366
Traveling and conveyance 551
Printing and stationary 799
Fee and subscription 2,805
Internal auditors remuneration 981
Insurance Expenses 1,472
Information technology expenses 4,162
Auditors' remuneration 375
Marketing expenses 3,895
Distribution expenses -
News papers & periodicals 4
Postage 583
Depreciation 3,899
Amortization of intangible asset 600
Security / Cleaning expenses 193
Writen off fixed assets -
Miscellaneous 948
Finance Cost 62,034
Workers Welfare Fund 1,382
186,542
Profit before taxation 73,818
Taxation - current 56,329
Profit after taxation 17,489

Note: Other revenue and expenses not relating to the scheme have not been included in the above statement.
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